
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Borough of Bellefonte Council Work Session 

AGENDA 

6:30 – 6:55 PM, Monday, March 4th, 2024 

In-Person, Large Room  

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 

 

      VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS       

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

      www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits.   

 
I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Bernier 

 
II. WELCOMING COMMENTS / OPENING REMARKS:  

A) Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session. No council 

action (making motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.   

B) Trivia Question – Council President Kent Bernier   

 
III. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 

    Note – All Times are approximate  

A) Governor’s Park Batting Cage Proposal – 25 Minutes 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 6:55 PM. Borough Council has a scheduled Executive 

Session for a Personnel Matter at 7:00 PM, in the Small Conference Room.  The Borough Council 

Business Meeting is scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.  

 

 

 
    

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 1 of 91

http://www.cnet1.org/


Proposal

Project: GOVERNORS PARK BATTING CAGE

build batting cageDescription:

Bid Date: 2/27/2024  12:00:00AM

Estimator: john

Revision Date:

Contract #:

From: John Nastase Construction

PO Box 1

Snow Shoe, PA 16874   United States

Phone: 814.280.1111

Fax: 814.387.4959

ITEM / DESCRIPTION BID QTY U/M AMOUNT

Building materials  1.000 ls *

site work  1,175.000 cy *

Turf  1.000 ls *

Labor For project  1.000 ls *

topsoil /seed  1.000 ls *

Stone prep under turf  150.000 ton *

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 2 of 91



Proposal

ITEM / DESCRIPTION BID QTY U/M AMOUNT

mobilization  1.000 ls *

Bond increase  1.000 ls *

wind screen  1.000 ls *

metal  1.000 ls *

trusses  1.000 ls *

Netting/Installed

Installed

 1.000 ls *

TOTAL BID:

*   CAUTION!!!  The total bid shown may not be correct because of rounding.   To correct rounding, return to the bid sheet 

and physically type Bid Units for all items with an * next to the Bid Unit value.

$283,357.36

Signature:

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 3 of 91



1 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

7:00 PM Executive Session – Grievance Hearing/WWTP Related 

Small Conference Room, 301 N. Spring St. 1st Floor 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Business Meeting 

7:30 PM Monday, March 4th, 2024 

Large Meeting Room, Armory Building, 

301 North Spring Street, Bellefonte  

 

      VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS       

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

      www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy  

       limits.   

 

AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II.      PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

III.  ROLL CALL 
 

Mr. Bernier, President, North Ward  Ms. McKean, West Ward  

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward  Ms. Purnell, North Ward  

Ms. Cleeton, South Ward  Ms. Sedgwick, West   Ward  

Ms. Dann, Vice-President, South Ward   Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward  

Mr. Johnson, North Ward   Mr. Larson, Junior Council Member  

   Mayor Johnson, At Large  

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
 

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take official action on it with 

some exceptions.  The Council can act on matters relating to potential or real emergencies.  Council may add a 

matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote.  The Council should state the reason why the 

action item is being added to the agenda.  Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 
 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding any action items listed on this meeting agenda or any 

comments in general. No deliberations will be entered into by Council at this time. Please sign in, come to the 

podium at the appropriate time, and state your name and address and which item you are speaking about. Please 

try to limit comments to three minutes maximum. 

  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 4 of 91

http://www.cnet1.org/


2 
 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS (written) 
 

Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Municipal Report for February 2024. FYI, no council action is needed. 

Marion Township Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment–Article 15.1: Conditional Use Criteria – Wind & Solar 

Facilities. Council typically does not comment on these proposed amendments. FYI, no council action is needed. 

The Borough has three Shade Trees (Trees for planting in the Street Right-of-way) available. Please contact Don 

Holderman, Assistant Borough Manager, if you are interested in receiving a free Shade Tree. (814)355-1501 ext. 215 or 

Dholderman@bellefontepa.gov. FYI, no council action is needed. 
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. There will 

be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council request specific items to be removed for 

separate action. Council Action Requested 
 

General Council Meeting Minutes February 20th, 2024 

Finance Budget v. Actual January 2024 

Finance Budget v. Actual Summary January 2024 

Finance Treasurer’s Report January 2024 

Finance Voucher Summary January 2024 

 

Call for a motion/2nd to approve the Consent Agenda 

IX. REPORTS 
 

Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor 

➢ Proclamation for Police Officer Robert Igoe 

Mayor Johnson Submitted 

Jr. Council Member 

➢ March 2024 Report 

Mr. Larson Submitted 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)  

➢ The Planning Commission will meet on Monday, March 11 at 5:00 p.m. 

➢  The HARB meeting for March 12, 2024, is canceled due to no projects 

for review.  

➢ The next HARB meeting will be held on March 26, 2024, at 8:30 a.m. 

Ms. Thompson Submitted 

 

X. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
 

Stoney Batter comments from Mark Hood, LTAP Representative.  Borough Staff are in the process of adding additional 

signage.  FYI, no council action is required at this time.  

Scenic Street (600 block) pothole complaint.  A review of the property file indicated that the Borough did not ordain or took 

over this street.  Maintenance is the responsibility of the property owner.  Pothole repair is not an enforceable item under the 

Borough’s Property Maintenance Code.  It is suggested that the tenant contact the property owner.  FYI, no council action 

is requested.  

TASA Agreement Amendment Resolution No. 03042024-01. Motion/2nd to approve the TASA Agreement Amendment 

Resolution No. 03042024-01.  

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Amendment 1 to Subrecipient Agreement dated June 21, 2022, for fiscal 

year 2020, Streetscape Safety Improvement Project. Motion/2nd to approve the CDBG Amendment 1 to Subrecipient 

Agreement for fiscal year 2020.  

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Amendment 1 to Subrecipient Agreement dated June 21, 2022, for fiscal 

year 2021, Streetscape Safety Improvement Project. Motion/2nd to approve the CDBG Amendment 1 to Subrecipient 

Agreement for fiscal year 2021. 

CATA Service Fee Increase/changes to services effective July 1, 2023.  A work session with area Federal, State, and local 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 5 of 91

mailto:Dholderman@bellefontepa.gov


3 
 

representatives to seek solutions is scheduled for 6:30 PM, Monday, March 18th, in the Large Meeting Room, 301 North 

Spring Street. FYI, no council action is requested.   

Memo: Suggested rate of $100.00 per hour for use of Governor’s Park Baseball Field. Motion/2nd to approve a rate of 

$100.00 per hour for use of Governor’s Park Baseball Field.  
 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

JC Orr & Son Inc. Certificate for Payment Applications No. 5 and No. 7 for Armory Property Project. Motion/ 2nd to remit 

payment to JC Orr & Son Inc. for Armory Property Project Payment Applications No. 5 and No. 7. 

John Claar Excavating Certificate for Payment No. 2 for Parkview Heights Stormwater Management Project. Motion/ 2nd to 

remit payment to John Claar Excavating for the Parkview Heights Stormwater Management Project Application No. 

2. 

PSAB Voting Delegate and Alternate Voting Delegate for June 2024 Conference. Motion/2nd to appoint Barb Dann as 

Voting Delegate and Johanna Sedgwick as Alternate Voting Delegate for the PSAB June 2024 Conference.  

Centre County Boroughs Association March Meeting -  save the date.  This meeting will be at 6:00 PM on Wednesday, 

March 28th, 2024, in the Small Conference Room, 301 North Spring Street, 1st Floor.  FYI, no council action is required.  

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM 
 

The Council Code of Conduct and the 2024 List of Goals/action items will be included with each Agenda.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 6 of 91



Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority

February 2024 | Municipal Newsletter

Amy Schirf, Education Coordinator

Long-time Centre County Recycling Coordinator to Retire

After joining the Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority (CCRRA) in 1990, Deputy Executive
Director/Recycling Coordinator Joanne Shafer will retire - February 29, 2024.

As the longest serving Recycling Coordinator in Pennsylvania, Joanne has served the Authority with
dignity and integrity. Joanne is an integral force for recycling in Pennsylvania and her legacy will live on
for many years to come.

AUTHORITY SERVICES

● Annual Recycling Reports | Section 304 (f) of Pennsylvania Act 101 of 1988 requires each municipality

to submit a report summarizing recycling efforts to the County by February 23. Thank you to those who

submitted their information in a timely manner. If you haven’t please submit today!

● Curbside Recycling is available in Marion Township, Walker Township, Howard Township, and Howard

Borough for $9 per month. Interested residents should contact CCRRA at (814) 238-7005.

● For January, the transfer station crew processed over 8,041 tons of refuse and the recycling crew

processed more than 870 tons of inbound recycled material.

● Our enforcement team is working hard to battle litter and illegal dumping throughout our county. They

collected a total of 800 lbs. of material (trash, tires, and scrap metal) illegally dumped. The total # of

tires collected for January was (15) fifteen.

● Clean Energy recently installed a canopy over its RNG fueling station on Transfer Road. Renewable

natural gas is available 24/7 at this location. Current price at the pump remains steady at $3.19 /GGE

● Have a community event coming up? CCRRA staff are available to attend your meetings and events, at

your request.

● Want a tour of our CCRRA facility? To request a tour for your group, just give us a call and ask for Amy!

● CCRRA produces a quarterly newsletter that is mailed to all municipal offices. If you are currently not

on our newsletter mailing list, please let us know and we would be happy to add you. It is also

delivered to subscribers through the Centre Daily Times, Centre County Gazette, and the Philipsburg

Journal.

● Check out our new Recycling App - RecycleCoach! It can be downloaded for free from the App Store. It

is a great tool for your smartphone to help you decide if an item is recyclable. The QR Code has been

placed at the end of the report for easy downloading.
Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Monthly Municipality Report - February

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 7 of 91



● CCRRA offers waste audits and educational materials for businesses and institutions to assist in your

recycling efforts. Contact our Commercial Recycling Coordinator Ed Hicks for details. Email

ehicks@centrecountyrecycles.org or phone (814) 238-7005.

UPCOMING EVENTS

● The annual Hazardous Household Waste event is scheduled for April 26-27, 2024. Friday 8 am - 4 pm
and Saturday 8 am - 2 pm. Registration will be required for this event hosted by CCRRA at no-charge to
Centre County residents. Residents can register after March 1, 2024 at www.centrecountyrecycles.org.

***

MEET THE CENTRE COUNTY RECYCLING AND REFUSE AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Each month the Authority will introduce you to a member of our Board of Directors!

GRANT FUNDING UPDATES

● We anticipate that DEP may announce an open round for 902 Recycling Program Development and

Implementation Grants in the winter. Please see the link here for application guidelines to see if your

municipality is eligible to apply. 902 Recycling Grant Application Guidelines . CCRRA’s Recycling

Coordinator is available to answer eligibility questions and to assist with the application process once

the round is open. We will notify eligible municipalities when this round is announced.

Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Monthly Municipality Report - February

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 8 of 91

mailto:ehicks@centrecountyrecycles.org
http://www.centrecounctyrecycles.org
https://www.dep.pa.gov/Business/Land/Waste/Recycling/Municipal-Resources/FinancialAssistance/Pages/902-Recycling-Grant-Application-Guidelines.aspx


● The Department of Community and Economic Development has announced a funding opportunity for

projects that enhance a community’s quality of life. We have received clarification that eligible

applicants may apply on behalf of non-profit organizations. Details can be found at Local Share

Account (LSA) – Statewide - PA Department of Community & Economic Development

Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Monthly Municipality Report - February

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 9 of 91

https://dced.pa.gov/programs/local-share-account-lsa-statewide/
https://dced.pa.gov/programs/local-share-account-lsa-statewide/


 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT OFFICE 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  Willowbank Office Building  DIRECTOR 
MARK HIGGINS, Chair  420 Holmes Street  RAYMOND J. STOLINAS, JR., AICP 

AMBER CONCEPCION  Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823-1488   

STEVEN G. DERSHEM  Telephone (814) 355-6791  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR 

  FAX (814) 355-8661  ELIZABETH A. LOSE 

  www.centrecountypa.gov   
 

 

 

 
February 29, 2024 
 
Marion Township Supervisors 
Attn: Leisa Johnstonbaugh, Secretary/Treasurer 
4337 Jacksonville Road 
Howard, PA 16841 
 
Re: Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment–Article 15.1: Conditional Use Criteria – Wind & Solar Facilities 
 County Planning & Community Development Office Review 
 
Dear Board of Supervisors: 
 
The Centre County Planning and Community Development Office appreciates the opportunity to review the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment submitted by your Solicitor, Attorney Mark F. Lingousky.  On February 14, 
2024, Linda D. Neff, Assistant to Attorney Lingousky, forwarded a copy of the proposed Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment template and request for this office’s review by means of email.  Ms. Neff did not indicate a proposed 
public hearing date at the time of the request, however, pursuant to § 609 (e) of the Pennsylvania Municipalities 
Planning Code:  
 

“the county planning agency shall receive a copy of the proposed municipal zoning amendment for 
recommendations, thirty days (30) prior to public hearing on an amendment by the local governing body, 
the municipality shall submit the amendment to the county planning agency for recommendations.”  

 
Moreover, as Marion Township considers amending the existing Zoning Ordinance, § 609 - Enactment of Zoning 
Ordinance Amendments should be followed as a guide towards properly amending the document.  Current case 
law suggests that any deviation from properly amending a zoning ordinance may cause the ordinance to be 
referred to as “void ab initio” or, in other words, not effective.  
 
Our staff reviewed the proposal and offers the following comments: 
 

1. REVIEW REQUESTED BY:   
 

Mark F. Lingousky, Esq., Marion Township Solicitor   
 

2. LOCATION: 
 

N/A 
 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 10 of 91



2 

 

3. CURRENT/PROPOSED ZONING:    
 
The current Marion Township Zoning Ordinance (June 10, 2008) does not address uses, such as “Wind or 
Solar Energy Facilities” as a permitted use, special exception or conditional use within any designated 
zoning districts.  The Zoning Ordinance Amendment proposes both “Wind and Solar Energy Facilities” as 
Conditional Uses within the Agricultural Preservation (A-1), Conservation (C-1) and Light Industrial (LI) 
districts.  The Zoning Ordinance Amendment also provides for Conditional Use criteria, Design 
Requirements, Decommissioning, Modification, Fees, and Definitions. 

 
4. BACKGROUND: 

 
The current Marion Township Zoning Ordinance being absent of “Wind or Solar Energy Facility” use 
provisions, any proposed applications for such a “lawful use” (neither specifically permitted or prohibited) 
would most likely be classified as a “Use Not Provided For”; however, the current Marion Township 
Zoning Ordinance does not contain a section that considers “Uses Not Provided For”. Such a provision 
regulates procedure for recognizing lawful uses, as, for example, a Conditional Use, when not explicitly 
identified within the ordinance and grants authority to the Township Supervisors to hear such proposals.  
Therefore, the approach to amend the current Zoning Ordinance allowing “Wind or Solar Energy 
Facilities” as a Conditional Use is the only prescription at this time that remedies the lack of the “Use Not 
Provided For” provision. 
 

5. ADJACENT USES:   
 
N/A 
 

6. COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Marion Township Board of Supervisors may accept the following recommendations related to the 
proposed zoning ordinance amendment:  
 
A) Considering the overall “Intent” of the Agricultural Preservation (A-1) and Conservation (C-1), as 

opposed to the Light Industrial (LI) district, “Wind or Solar Energy Facilities” may not be consistent 
with: 
 
i. (A-1) “To preserve and protect agricultural land and highly productive soils in rural areas” 

ii. (A-1) “To maintain the opportunity for the production of all agricultural products for the 
residents of Centre County” 

iii. (A-1) “To minimize impacts from incompatible land uses” 
iv. (C-1) “To preserve and protect the natural diversity of the rural areas” 
v. (C-1) “To protect natural habitat areas and provide passive recreational opportunities” 

 
B) Under Article 15.1: B.2., Modification of Conditional Use Permit, the proposed section allows for a 

change or modification the originally approved Conditional Use adjudicated by the Marion Township 
Supervisors.  First, the section is general and only refers to the “Township” determining compliance 
with the modification and “all applicable provisions”, meaning there is no specific body mentioned, 
such as the Township Zoning Officer, to determine applicability.  The Pennsylvania Municipalities 
Planning Code does not specifically grant authority or process for a Conditional Use modification as 
well.  Further modification of a decision of the Township Board of Supervisors may very well 
necessitate another public hearing to formally modify the original Conditional Use approval, if legally 
applicable under the PA MPC. 
 

C) Under Article 15.1: B.5., Multiple Lots or Tracts, the following statement does not seem correct for 
the Wind Energy Facilities section: “The area upon which a Wind Energy Facility sits may consist of 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 11 of 91



3 

 

separate lots or tracts, each under separate ownership, so long as all of the solar panels and 
associated facilities in the Wind Energy Facility…”. Consider deleting the underlined statement or 
modifying for ancillary or accessory appurtenances for Wind Energy Facilities.  

 
D) Under Article 15.1: C.1.g), the following statement does not seem correct for the Solar Energy 

Facilities section: “Type(s), size(s) and number of solar panels as well as any accessory structures or 
equipment accompanying wind turbines”. Consider deleting the underlined statement or modifying 
for ancillary or accessory appurtenances for Solar Energy Facilities. 

 
E) Under Article 15.1: C.2., Modification of Conditional Use Permit, same comments as identified in item 

B. above applicable to the PA MPC and Conditional Uses. 
 
F) Under Article 15.1: C.6., Preemption, the following statement does not seem correct for the Solar 

Energy Facilities section: “If any provisions in this section regarding Solar Energy Facilities conflict with 
any prior ordinance, the provision of this section regarding Wind Energy Facilities applies”. Consider 
deleting the underlined statement or modifying for Solar Energy Facilities. 

 
G) Under Article 15.1: D.2., Uniform Construction Code, correct: “To the extent applicable, the Winder 

and Solar Energy Facilities…”  
 
H) Under Article 15.1: D.7., Meteorological Stations, correct “A meteorologist meteorological station…” 
 
I) Under Article 15.1: D.8.a) i. & ii, Setbacks, as a general rule, ground mounted Solar Energy Facilities 

typically follow underlying Zoning District setback guidelines for front, rear and side yards.  What is 
proposed under this section is 150’ from the front, rear and side of the nearest property line, 
however, the Township can consider reverting setback requirements back to underlying zoning. On 
the average for the A-1, C-1 and LI Districts, yard setbacks are established at 50’ Front, 50’ Side and 
50’ Rear as a more reasonable setback for Solar Energy Facility structures that have a common height 
of 10-20 feet high and accessory facilities such as inverters and battery storage internal to the site.  
Reference to and compliance with Article 27 of the Marion Township Zoning Ordinance, Landscaping 
Requirements, can reinforce and mitigate any adverse effects in the collection and conversion of solar 
energy.  

 
J) Under Article 15.1: D.8.a.iii., this section should read: “Exceptions to a) i. and ii” instead of 

“Exceptions to (a) and (b)”.  And, under b) ii., should read: “Exceptions to b) i.” instead of “Exceptions 
to (a)”. 

 
K) Under Article 15.1: D.10., Signal Interference, this section outlines that “During a time period of 30 

days to 60 days post-construction, an Applicant for a Wind Energy Facility shall test signal reception at 
the same buildings tested prior. Any significant signal degradation shall be corrected by the 
Applicant”. This section should also require the Applicant to submit test signal reception reports to 
Marion Township Zoning Officer in order that the Township is knowledgeable of any mitigation 
measures attempted by the Applicant and further resolve of the signal issue. 

 
L) Under Article 15.1: D.11., Liability Insurance, please correct the following: “…Certifications shall be 

made available to Marion Township upon request”.  
 
M) Under Article 15.1: E.8., Decommissioning, the section states: “If the facility owner or operator fails to 

complete decommissioning or any other requirement of this Decommissioning section within the 
period prescribed by paragraph 4.A,…”.  Further inspection of section E. may refer to “paragraph 
E.1.” instead, as this paragraph outlines a timeline of 12-months after the end of the useful life of the 
facility(s) or if no electricity is generated for a continuous period of 12-months. 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 12 of 91



4 

 

N) Under Article 15.1: F., Modification, the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code does not prescribe 
the term or process of “Modification” as a relief from provisions that inflict an unnecessary hardship 
upon the Applicant under Zoning regulations.  Only through the term and process of Variance can act 
as a relief valve from strict application of ordinance requirements. Section 910.2 of the MPC sets 
forth the criteria that must be met for the granting of a Variance.  The only body that can grant a 
Variance is the Zoning Hearing Board and must meet the five criteria set forth under this section.  It is 
highly recommended that the Marion Township Board of Supervisors consider Variance process 
under the current Zoning Ordinance for not only this proposed amendment, but also, other 
dimensional or De Minimis relief requests. 

 
O) Under Article 15.1: G.2.a.b. & c., Fees, Marion Township can charge reasonable administrative fees 

for Variances, Special Exceptions and Conditional Uses, however, under the current proposed Fee 
Schedule, the Township is prohibited from charging all engineering fees and allows one half of the 
cost of stenographer fees/transcription fees under Section 908.(1.1). 

 
P) Under Article 15.1: H., Definitions, it is recommended to include the following terms to this section: 
 

a. Baseline Condition 
b. Decommissioning Plan 
c. Impacted Roads 
d. Meteorological Station 
e. Predevelopment Condition 
f. Post-Construction Condition 
g. Signal Interference  
h. Solar Panel 
i. Wind Turbine 

 
Q) The Marion Township Zoning Ordinance, under each designated Zoning District does stipulate other 

lot and height requirements for Permitted and Conditional Uses.  A minimum lot size for both Solar 
and Wind Energy Facilities should be considered, at a minimum, of 50-100 acres. Typical ground 
mounted Solar Energy Facilities should comply with existing underlying maximum height 
requirements under the A-1, C-1 and LI districts at 35’. 
 

R) In 2004, participating members of the Nittany Valley Planning Commission, may have adopted a 
“Comprehensive Plan Implementation Agreement” by ordinance, where, Item 4. Future 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment or Ordinance Amendment, outlines that, “…If any participating 
municipality desires to make an amendment to the Nittany Valley Region Comprehensive Plan or any 
land development ordinances developed and/or revised pursuant to that plan, that municipality shall 
submit in writing, to each Participant and to the Centre County Planning Office, a description of the 
proposed amendment with supporting evidence and documentation for review and comment.  The 
Centre County Planning Office shall have thirty days to provide comments to the municipality and to 
each participant. Following the County’s thirty-day review and comment period, the participants shall 
have an additional fifteen days to submit comments to the municipality, to each participant and to the 
Centre County Planning Office…” 

 
As a reminder, the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, § 609 (g) specifies that within thirty (30) days after 
enactment, a copy of the amendment to the zoning ordinance or map shall be forwarded to the county planning 
agency, if approved by the Board of Supervisors. 
 
Thank you for allowing our office to review this proposed zoning ordinance amendment in a timely manner.  If you 
require any additional information or have any questions regarding these comments, please contact our office at 
your earliest convenience.   
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 13 of 91



5 

 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 

Raymond J. Stolinas Jr., AICP 
Centre County Planning Director 
 
RJS 
 
cc: Mark F. Lingousky, Esq., Glantz, Johnson & Associates (email) 
 Chris Schnure, Subdivision and Land Development Planner, CCPCDO (email) 

Elizabeth Lose, Asst. Planning Director, CCPCDO (email) 
John Franek, Jr., County Administrator (email) 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager, Bellefonte Borough (email) 
Sharon Royer, Secretary/Treasurer, Benner Township (email) 
Mike Danneker, Township Manager, Spring Township (email) 
Susan Wagner, Secretary/Treasurer, Walker Township (email) 
file 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 14 of 91



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

                           Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 

February 20, 2024 - 7:30 p.m. 
236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 

www.bellefonte.net 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

The February 20, 2024 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 

p.m. 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (followed by a moment of silence) 

 

III. MEMBERS PRESENT  Mr. Kent Bernier, President 

     Mr. Randall Brachbill  

     Ms. Deborah Cleeton  

     Ms. Barbara Dann, Vice President 

     Mr. Douglas Johnson, Pro Tempore  

     Ms. Shawna McKean-EXCUSED 

     Ms. Rita Purnell 

     Ms. Johanna Sedgwick 

     Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey 

     Mr. Christian Larson, Jr. Council Member 

     Mayor Buddy Johnson      

   

STAFF PRESENT  Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 

    Mr. Don Holderman, Assistant Borough Manager  

    Ms. Julie Brooks, Assistant Superintendent of Public Works 

    Mr. Shawn Weaver, Chief of Police 

 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

NONE 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT - Agenda and Non-Agenda/General Items and Comments 

Joseph Griffin, President of the Bellefonte Historical and Cultural Association spoke regarding 

their organization, their impact on the community, and their vision for the future. The BHCA 

would like to hold several outdoor events over the next few months, including a Sidewalk Easter 

parade on Easter Sunday. He is requesting permission to have approximately 75ft of Cherry Lane 

blocked off for about a half hour at 2:00 pm on Easter Sunday to facilitate this event. He submitted 

their application and some information for Council members to review. 

 

Jon Guizar, BASD School Board President, spoke regarding the Land Development Plan for the 

proposed elementary school project, slated to be completed in 2025, for occupancy for the 2026-

2027 school year. He encouraged council to approve the proposed Land Development Plan to help 

keep the project on schedule. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 15 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

Feb 20, 2024 

Page 2 

 

VI.  COMMUNICATIONS  

Governors Park Baseball Field Hourly rate request.  

 

D. Brachbill motioned and Tosti-Vasey seconded to change the Ballfields rates. Discussion 

included Tosti-Vasey offering her ideas on this motion. She presented three possibilities for 

consideration. Stewart indicated that rates would be set at the next meeting.  The three 

possibilities Tosti-Vasey presented were: 

• $500 for each day of a tournament plus $63/hour for practices (based on $500/8 hours) 

• Suggest creating a daily hourly fair based on the typical length of a tournament play so 

that the tournament fee remains the same as in the first option. For example: if a 

tournament lasts four hours, make the tournament fee $125/hour and the practice fee 

$63/hour. 

• Split the difference in the second option and make the fee $94/hour for both tournaments 

and practice. 

 Roll call vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  --- 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

Stoney Batter and Pine Street (SR 144) Speed Study results. No council action is requested. 

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA (will be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise noted) 

All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a 

single motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council 

request specific items to be removed for separate action. 

 

Consent Agenda includes the following items: 

1. General  Council Meeting Minutes February 5th, 2024 

2. Finance  Stover McGlaughlin Invoice February 2024 

 

Brachbill motioned and Tosti-Vasey seconded to approve the Consent Agenda. No discussion. 

Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  -- 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

VIII. REPORTS   

Mayor Johnson  

Mayor Johnson read a Proclamation regarding the  School Resource Officer Appreciation Day. 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 16 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

Feb 20, 2024 

Page 3 

 

Police – Chief Weaver  

December 2023 & January 2024 Report 

Parking Enforcement and Animal Control January 2024 Report 

 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 

Public Meeting for the Bellefonte Historic Design Guidelines, to be held February 27, 2024, from 

8:30 – 10:00 a.m. at Bellefonte Springboard, located at 221 W. High Street, Suite 1300. (Enter 

from the Spring Street side, across from Pizza Mia.) 

 

See the memo for information on the Fire Department review of the Bellefonte Elementary Land 

Development Plan. 

 

Liaison Reports  (Reports were submitted) 

Tosti-Vasey noted that the $200,000 grant given to the Bellefonte Area Industrial Authority was 

returned to the borough and asked which budget it was returned to and if it could be used to 

partially close the gap we have for CATA transportation. Holderman indicated that it was put back 

into the Bulk Water fund and could be used as we see fit, including reducing the debt on the 

Waterfront property. 

Borough Manager (Submitted) 

 

IX.  CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 

The CATA Fee Increase and Affects to Services. A work session is scheduled for 6:30 PM on 

Monday, March 18th, with area federal, state, and local officials to seek solutions. No council 

action is requested. 

 

Approval of Ordinance No. 02202024-01 Amendments to Chapter 35 - Fire Department.  

 

Cleeton motioned and Brachbill seconded to approve Ordinance No. 02202024-01 Amendments 

to Chapter 35: Fire Department. No discussion. Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  -- 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

Stoney Batter and Pine Street (SR 144) Speed Study results. No council action is requested. 

 

Grant Application for Traffic Signal Installation at Parkview Blvd. and Zion Road. The grant 

application was not successful. A meeting with our traffic signal engineer is scheduled to review 

options. No council action is requested. 

 

CDBG Grant Funding for Suspension Bridge Project.  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Dann seconded to proceed with the Suspension Bridge project as a 

3-year project instead of a 2-year project. No discussion. Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  -- 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 17 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

Feb 20, 2024 

Page 4 

 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

EV Parking Meter update from Assistant Borough Manager. EV Charging Station fine to be set 

to $25.00.  

 

Dann motioned and Cleeton seconded to set the EV Charging Station fine to $25.00. Discussions 

included Tosti-Vasey noted that the proposed fees result in a higher relative parking fee than 

any other type of fine that is called out for differing parking violations. Holderman clarified how 

Borough Staff came up with the fee.  

Tosti-Vasey motioned to amend the motion to set the fee at $15 per violation as are all of the 

other called-out parking violation fines. Her motion did not receive a second.   

 

Roll Call Vote on the original motion. No further discussion. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  -- 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             NAY 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

Proposed Performance/Conditional Approval Agreement to Bellefonte Borough from Bellefonte 

Area School District in reference to the elementary school project. This proposed Agreement was 

reviewed by the Borough Solicitor. Borough Council may take action to conditionally approve 

the BASD’s Land Development Plan for the elementary school along Airport Road. The 

proposed agreement, with any changes recommended by the borough solicitor, is to be accepted 

by the applicant. All unfinished components are to be submitted to the borough prior to final 

approval. 

  

Tosti-Vasey motioned to conditionally approve the elementary school land development plan 

with the conditions stated in the conditions outlined by Walt Schneider, Executive Director of 

the Centre Region Codes Enforcement Office. There was no second to her motion. 

 

Purnell motioned and Dann seconded the motion: to conditionally approve the elementary 

school land development plan with the conditions stated in the proposed contract. Tosti-Vasey 

pointed out that the conditions outlined by Schneider were for fire safety and that Schneider 

indicated in his letter that this needed to be included in the land development plan rather than 

as part of a building permit. Borough and School district staff clarified that there are experts in 

place who review all components of construction projects and these experts will address all 

issues and requirements of the project in order to ensure that the project will be completed 

according to all building codes and requirements, and also according to Tosti-Vasey’s 

extensive, comprehensive comments. Bernier commented that at some point, Council will have 

to agree to trust the professionals who are in place for this project and that they will act in the 

best interest of all involved parties. Bernier does not want himself to be responsible for holding 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 18 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

Feb 20, 2024 

Page 5 

 

up or delaying this project. Roll Call Vote on the original motion. No further discussion. Motion 

carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  -- 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             NAY 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

Historic District. Proposal to institute a building permit requirement for roof replacements in the 

Historic District. Council may take action on this proposal.  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Brachbill seconded to advertise an amendment to the Historic District 

Ordinance. Roll Call Vote. No discussion. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  -- 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

X.  NEW BUSINESS 

Memo from the Assistant Borough Manager on various projects and updates within the Borough. 

No council action is requested. 

 

The projected Central Booking Local Participant Charges for 2024. No council action is requested. 

 

The Solicitor has reviewed the Police Department's Use of Authorized Less Lethal Weapons 

Policy.  

 

Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve the proposed Use of Authorized Less 

Lethal Weapons Policy. Roll Call Vote. No discussion. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  -- 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

Centred Outdoors is requesting a waiver on parking meter fees adjacent to Talleyrand Park for 

participants during our evening events on Wednesday, June 12th (6:00 PM-8:00 PM) and 

Thursday, June 13th (6:00 PM-8:00 PM). 

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Sedgewick seconded to approve the request to waive parking meter 

fees to Talleyrand Park on Wednesday, June 12th (6:00 PM-8:00 PM) and Thursday, June 13th 

(6:00 PM-8:00 PM). Roll Call Vote. Discussion included a question regarding which spaces 

would be free. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  -- 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 19 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

Feb 20, 2024 

Page 6 

 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT   

 

Motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 8:18 pm.  

   

Stewart announced that there was an executive session before the meeting to discuss personnel 

issues.    

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 20 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 21 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 22 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 23 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 24 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 25 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 26 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 27 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 28 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 29 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 30 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 31 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 32 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 33 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 34 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 35 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 36 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 37 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 38 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 39 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 40 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 41 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 42 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 43 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 44 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 45 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 46 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 47 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 48 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 49 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 50 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 51 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 52 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 53 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 54 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 55 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 56 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 57 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 58 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 59 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 60 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 61 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 62 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 63 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 64 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 65 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 66 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 67 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 68 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 69 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 70 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 71 of 91



 
 
 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
FOR 

ROBERT IGOE 
 
Whereas, Robert Igoe has been employed by the Borough of Bellefonte Police Department since April 24th, 

1997; and 
 
Whereas, Robert has faithfully and conscientiously served the Borough and its citizens for 26 years as a Patrol 

Officer; and 
 
Whereas, Robert retired from his position as Patrol Officer effective January 13th, 2024; and 
 
Whereas, Robert consistently performed to the best of his ability during his tenure as a member of the 

Bellefonte Borough Police Department; and 
 
Now, therefore, in appreciation of his years of dedicated service, we extend to Robert and his family our best 
wishes for many years of happiness in the future. 
 
I DO HEREBY set my hand and seal this 4th day of March, 2024. 
 
 
     _________________________________________ 
          Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor 
                Borough of Bellefonte 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 72 of 91



Junior Council Member Report
March 4, 2024

- Junior Council Member Report will be provided at the first meeting of every month.

School Report:

- Currently, the school is operating on a normal schedule. We are about halfway through

the third quarter.

- In the last week, students have been scheduling classes for next year.

- In the last month, Bellefonte Area High School hosted Rachel’s Challenge.

- Rachel’s Challenge is a group against violence and challenges you to pass on

kindness to everyone.

- Rachel's Challenge is based on the life of Rachel Joy Scott who was the first

student to be killed in the Columbine High School shooting in 1999.

Extracurriculars:

- The Class of 2025 has begun planning the underclassman prom.

- Bellefonte’s National Honor Society is beginning planning for next year.

- Spring sports have begun.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 73 of 91



MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Bellefonte Borough Council 
FROM:  Gina Thompson: HARB, Zoning & Planning Administrator  
SUBJECT: Office of Community Affairs Update 
DATE:  For Council Meeting March 4, 2024 

 

 
If you have any questions about the current projects, or would like additional information, please do 

not hesitate to contact Gina Thompson at gthompson@bellefontepa.gov. 

*** I will be on vacation the week of March 4 thru March 8.  
 

PLANNING: 
 
The Planning Commission will meet Monday, March 11 at 5:00 p.m. in Council Chambers. 
  
 

 
ZONING: 

 
Nothing to report at this time.  
 
 

HARB: 
 
The next HARB meeting for March 12, 2024 will be canceled due to there being no projects for 
review.  
 
The next meeting is scheduled for March 26, 2024, at 8:30 a.m. Council Chambers.  
 
I will have a more thorough report on the Public Meeting for the updated Historic District 
Guidelines that was held on February 27. In short, the event was a huge success with a great 
attendance (over 40 people) and lots of valuable feedback from the community.  
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 74 of 91



1

Ralph Stewart

From: Mark M. Hood <MHood@Pennoni.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 20, 2024 8:37 PM
To: Ralph Stewart
Cc: Donald Holderman; Julie Brooks; Matt Auman
Subject: RE: Stoney Batter, Bellefonte Borough - speeding signage complaints

Hi Ralph: 
 
Thanks for the data! 
 
My considerations below under “Addressing Concerns” really didn’t change based on the data.  85th percentile speed of 
22.46 MPH and average speed of 17.6 MPH is what I would expect on that road.  You could post a speed limit at either 
20 or 25 MPH.  At 25 MPH, only 6 out of 14,000 vehicles were in the enforceable range.  I still think the bigger concern is 
ped safety on the south side of the road. 
 
Mark 
 
 
Mark M. Hood, PE  
 
Pennoni  
2571 Park Center Boulevard, Suite 2 | State College, PA 16801  
Direct: +1 814-826-3889 | Mobile: +1 814-777-4096 
www.pennoni.com | MHood@Pennoni.com 
  

From: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 20, 2024 2:08 PM 
To: Mark M. Hood <MHood@Pennoni.com> 
Cc: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>; Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov>; Matt Auman 
<mauman@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: RE: Stoney Batter, Bellefonte Borough - speeding signage complaints 
 
Hello Mark. 
I have attached the letter we received from Penn Dot regarding Pine Street/144.  Also attached is the speed and volume 
study results.  Our police department used their digital sign data collector to do the study.   
 
Thanks, 
Ralph  
 
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
236 West Lamb Street 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 75 of 91



2

 

From: Mark M. Hood <MHood@Pennoni.com>  
Sent: Sunday, February 18, 2024 4:56 PM 
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Cc: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>; Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov>; Matt Auman 
<mauman@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: RE: Stoney Batter, Bellefonte Borough - speeding signage complaints 
 
Hi Ralph: 
  
I was driving to Bellefonte for another meeting last week so I stopped and took a look at Stoney Batter Road. It was 
around 4:00 and likely the start of the evening peak; it was quite busy.  As you well know, Stoney Batter provides a 
convenient shortcut from SR 150 (Willowbrook/S. Water Street) to SR 144 (Pine Street) and the downtown area. 
  
Data from PennDOT’s Traffic Information Repository (TIRe)  

 SR 150 is a principal arterial; ADT 14,647; 4% trucks 
 SR 144 is a collector; ADT 3,929; 3% trucks 
 Stoney Batter Road is a local road; ADT 500-1,000 (estimated) 
 *I think the TIRe volume estimate is low…it will be interesting to see what the data you collect indicates 

  
Data from Pennsylvania Crash Information Tool (PCIT) 

 0 crashes on Stoney Batter Road 
 0 crashes at the intersection with SR 150 
 2 crashes at intersection with SR 144. Both crashes involved vehicles turning left out of Stoney Batter onto SR 

144, and both involved pedestrians. Once crash indicated the vehicle on Stoney Batter proceeded without 
clearance. 

  
Observations 

 Stoney Batter has one way operations eastbound from SR 150 to SR 144. 
 The roadway has a significant, consistent grade of at least 10%. 
 Observed traffic consisted of all passenger vehicles in fairly high numbers. Traffic queued at the intersection 

with SR 144. 
 While I didn’t observe any large trucks, I did see 3 pedestrians walking up Stoney Batter Road (eastbound) in the 

½ hour that I was there. One of the pedestrians walked on the north side of the road outside of the painted edge 
line, while two pedestrians walked on the south side next to the homes. 

 Guiderail was installed along a large portion of the north side of the roadway, protecting a significant drop. 
 Traffic noise was loud, likely from vehicles accelerating up the hill. 
 The travel lane was about 14 feet from the edge line to edge of the opposite side of the road. 
 There were three access points on the north side of the road including one to the Knights of Columbus and two 

driveways.  
 There were two access points on the south side of the road to driveways/parking areas and several additional 

pedestrian access points to homes. 
  
Traffic Control Devices Eastbound (not including Street Name signs) 

 No Parking Any Time (R7-4) sign on left side of the roadway just after the intersection with SR 150. 
 A Left Clearance Marker (OM3-L) on the left side of the roadway approaching the last home on the left side of 

the road. 
 A Keep Right with 30 Degree Arrow (R4-7B) sign on the right side of the road approaching SR 144. 
 A Horizontal Left One Way (R6-1L) sign on the right side of the road opposite the Knights of Columbus driveway. 
 A Stop (R1-1) sign at the intersection with SR 144. 
 A white edge line from the intersection with SR 150 to the Knights of Columbus driveway. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 76 of 91



3

  
Traffic Control Devices Westbound (not including Street Name signs) 

 A Do Not Enter (R5-1) sign on the left side of the roadway posted on the back of the Stop sign. 
 A Do Not Enter (R5-1) sign on the right side of the roadway posted just after the Knights of Columbus driveway. 

  
Addressing Concerns 

 The first thing I would recommend is getting actual speed and volume data for the road.  That way you can 
evaluate the actual speed and not speculate. 

 Given the short length and steep grade, I don’t see speeds getting excessive but I could certainly be wrong. 
 It will be rather difficult if not impossible to enforce speeds along Stoney Batter.  It’s longer than 500’, so in 

theory, speeds would be enforceable. However, there really isn’t anywhere to set up VASCAR, locate police, and 
pull someone over. Check will your local police on this. 

 If the Borough wanted, they could do a speed study and establish a speed limit. Speed limit signs could then be 
posted on both the right and left side of the road within 200 feet of the intersection with SR 150. While it may 
be difficult to enforce, it would still raise driver’s awareness of what the speed limit is and what their operating 
speed is. The signs can even be enhanced by adding reflective white channel post strips to the sign installations, 
adding “25 MPH” pavement markings to supplement the signs, or adding conspicuity plaques (W16-102P) or 
flags to the sign assembly.  

 You could use a speed awareness trailer which displays the speed of vehicles as they pass. This is temporary, but 
can raise driver awareness of their operating speed. 

 My bigger concern is related to pedestrians and the pedestrian access points to homes along the south side of 
the road.   There is little margin for error here as pedestrians leave their home to get to the parking area or walk 
along the roadway to downtown. The Borough could consider: 

o Narrowing the travel lane to 10’-12’ from the existing 14’. 10’ is an adequate width for travelling 
vehicles. This can be done with another solid edge line along the length of the south side of the road. 
Along with this, you could consider shifting the singular travel lane further from the right side of the 
road. 

o The advantage of narrowing the lane, besides the potential for lowering speeds is to be able to create a 
pedestrian lane along the right side of the road where most of the pedestrian access points are. 

o White flexible delineators could be installed along the new edge pavement marking to further delineate 
the pedestrian space. This may create some additional winter maintenance needs to keep the 
pedestrian path clear. 

 The Borough could also try Transverse Rumble Strip Pavement Markings. These are double thick thermoplastic 
transverse pavement markings that could slow traffic on the roadway. Refer to page 76 of Pub 383 
(https://www.dot.state.pa.us/public/pubsforms/Publications/PUB%20383.pdf). Transverse pavement markings 
can be implemented quickly and effectively and are not as costly or noisy as milled rumble strips. However, 
these still may not be compatible with the residential character of the nearby land use. 

 I’m not sure of the purpose of the Keep Right with 30 Degree Arrow (R4-7B) sign on the right side of the road 
approaching SR 144. As per Publication 236, this sign is used at the ends of medians, parkways, loading islands, 
and refuge islands, at traffic islands and underpass piers, and where traffic is required to keep to the right of 
such obstructions.  These conditions do not apply here, so I would consider removing this sign. 

 The Borough should also consider One Way (R6-1) signs at the intersections of SR 150 and SR 144 to indicate the 
one way operations to motorists. 

 LTAP also recommends oversizing the existing Stop sign at the intersection with SR 144. Right now, the Do Not 
Enter sign posted on the back to the Stop sign is not a proper posting because it changes the outline of the 
shape of the Stop sign.  Oversizing the Stop sign will allow for the back-to-back posting since the unique 
octagonal shape of the Stop sign will be maintained. 

  
I know I’ve already discussed the importance of having a traffic calming policy in place if you are going to try any physical 
measures. Let me know if you’d like a refresher on that information. But, other than the rumble strips, most other 
physical measures are not appropriate here. 
  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 77 of 91



4

I would also check out FHWA’s Speed Management: A Manual for Local Rural Road Owners: 
https://highways.dot.gov/sites/fhwa.dot.gov/files/2022-06/speedmanagementguide.pdf This document is intended to 
provide local road practitioners with information on how to address speeding-related crashes through the 
implementation of a comprehensive Speed Management Program. An effective program addresses all factors that 
influence speeding through engineering, enforcement, education, and emergency services—known as the four Es of 
safety.   
  
Here is a fantastic resource from FHWA: Speed Management Toolkit. 
https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/speedmgt/ref_mats/docs/speedmanagementtoolkit_final.pdf  This package of speed 
management resources was developed from the most relevant and up- to-date existing speed management guides, 
informational resources, and research evidence. There are three main types of content.  

 The first section, an Annotated Bibliography provides a descriptive list of key speed management resources. 
 The second section describes crash- and speed-reducing countermeasures and the effects that might be 

expected for implementing the listed treatments. 
 The third section provides tip sheets for communications experts and others involved in supporting the speed 

management program and countermeasures through education and awareness efforts.  
  
FHWA Speed Management Action Plan Template: 
https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/speedmgt/ref_mats/docs/fhwa_speedmanagactionplantemplate_final.pdf  
This Model Plan template is part of the Jurisdiction Speed Management Action Plan Development Package. This 
template was developed to provide a framework for State and local agencies to use in developing speed management 
safety action plans. The plan template provides guidance but allows the user to develop tailored actions, safety goals 
and a plan for countermeasures implementation through a systematic process, as well as to address larger speed 
management issues that often limit program effectiveness and durability.   
  
Hope this helps! 
  
Best, 
  
Mark 
  
  
 
Mark M. Hood, PE  
 
Pennoni  
2571 Park Center Boulevard, Suite 2 | State College, PA 16801  
Direct: +1 814-826-3889 | Mobile: +1 814-777-4096 
www.pennoni.com | MHood@Pennoni.com 
  

From: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 3:04 PM 
To: Mark M. Hood <MHood@Pennoni.com> 
Cc: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>; Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov>; Matt Auman 
<mauman@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: Stoney Batter, Bellefonte Borough - speeding signage complaints  
  
Hello Mark, 
I hope all is going well!   We received a complaint from a resident regarding drivers speeding on Stoney Batter.  The 
resident suggested improved signage including pavement markings.   As a side note, the resident had similar concerns 
about SR 144/Pine Street.  We are contacting Penn DoT about those issues. 
  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 78 of 91



5

Would you be willing to review the current signage on Stoney Batter and make recommendations for improving what we 
have?  If you have any suggestions regarding any reasonable traffic-calming measures, that would be great as well. 
  
Thank you, 
  
Ralph  
  
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
236 West Lamb Street 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 
  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 79 of 91



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. O3042024-01 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 

AGREEMENT WITH THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF FUNDS FOR THE 

BELLEFONTE STREETSCAPE SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, Bellefonte Borough has plans to make streetscape improvements on 

West Bishop Street and South Spring Street in Bellefonte Borough, Centre County, 

 

WHEREAS, Bellefonte Borough has been awarded Transportation Alternatives 

Set-Aside funding, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Bellefonte Borough hereby 

approves and accepts the amendment to the current reimbursable agreement, 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Bellefonte Borough Council hereby 

authorizes the Assistant Borough Manager to sign, on behalf of the Bellefonte 

Borough Council, the federal aid Reimbursement Agreement and Amendment 

between Bellefonte Borough and the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation 

and have the same delivered to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

 

RESOLVED this 4th day of March, 2024. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________  ______________________________    

Ralph W. Stewart, Secretary  Kent Bernier, Council President    

 

{SEAL}     _____________________________ 

      Date    

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 80 of 91



AMENDMENT 1 
TO  

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 

This Amendment to the Subrecipient Agreement ("Amendment”) is made this __4th_ day of 

_March____, 2024, by and between the County of Centre ("COUNTY") and Bellefonte Borough 

(“OBO”). 

WHEREAS, COUNTY and “OBO” entered into a Subrecipient Agreement dated June 21, 

2022, ("Agreement") for the purpose of implementing Streetscape Safety Improvements Project in 

accordance with the County’s FFY 2020 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Contract No. 

C000075971; and 

WHEREAS, it has become necessary to amend said Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound and to so bind their respective successors and 

assigns and incorporating the recitals hereinabove set forth by reference, COUNTY and OBO hereby agree 

to make the following changes to the Agreement:   

1. ARTICLE III – EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINATION DATE

This article shall be amended extending the termination date from March 2, 2024,

to September 2, 2024.

2. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby ratified and affirmed

and shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this Amendment intending to be legally bound 

hereby. 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 

___________________________________ 

Don Holderman, Assistant Borough Manager  Kent Beriner, President 

  CENTRE COUNTY 
ATTEST: 

John Franek, Jr., Administrator  Mark Higgins, Chairman 

 Amber Concepcion, Vice-Chairperson 

 Steven G. Dershem, Commissioner 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 81 of 91



AMENDMENT 1 
TO  

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 

This Amendment to the Subrecipient Agreement ("Amendment”) is made this _4th__ day of 

_March___, 2024, by and between the County of Centre ("COUNTY") and Bellefonte Borough 

(“OBO”). 

WHEREAS, COUNTY and “OBO” entered into a Subrecipient Agreement dated June 21, 

2022, ("Agreement") for the purpose of implementing Streetscape Safety Improvements Project in 

accordance with the County’s FFY 2021 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Contract No. 

C000082286; and 

WHEREAS, it has become necessary to amend said Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound and to so bind their respective successors and 

assigns and incorporating the recitals hereinabove set forth by reference, COUNTY and OBO hereby agree 

to make the following changes to the Agreement:   

1. ARTICLE III – EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINATION DATE

This article shall be amended extending the termination date from March 2, 2024,

to September 2, 2024.

2. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby ratified and affirmed

and shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this Amendment intending to be legally bound 

hereby. 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 

_____________________________ 

Don Holderman, Assistant Borough Manager 

__________________________________

Kent Bernier, Chairman 

CENTRE COUNTY 
ATTEST: 

____________ 
John Franek, Jr., Administrator Mark Higgins, Chairman 

____________ 
Amber Concepcion, Vice-Chairperson 

____________ 
Steven G. Dershem, Commissioner 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 82 of 91



Memo 
To: Council 

From: Alyssa Doherty 

Date: February 28, 2024 

Re: Hourly Rate for use of Governor’s Park Baseball Field 

Local Baseball teams have asked for an hourly rate for use of Governor’s Park Baseball Field. 
Currently, the Borough has a daily date of $500. After some research and discussion, I am 
proposing a $100.00 hourly rate for the use of the baseball field. This fee would cover the use of 
the field and administrative costs for scheduling and communication with the team reserving use 
of the field.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 83 of 91



12/21/2023

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 84 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 85 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 86 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 87 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 88 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 89 of 91



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 90 of 91



Bellefonte, Centre County

March 4, 2024

236 W. Lamb Street, Bellefonte, PA 16823

Boro@bellefontepa.gov

Council Member

Council Member

Barbara Dann

Johanna Sedgwick

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet March 4, 2024

Page 91 of 91


	WORK SESSION --AGENDA 03042024
	WORK SESSION--FINAL ESTIMATE GOVERNORS PARK BATTING CAGE PROPOSAL
	COUNCIL MEETING--AGENDA 03042024
	COMMUNICATIONS--CCRRA Municipal Report -February 2024
	COMMUNICATIONS--Marion Township ZOA_Wind and Solar Facilities_2_29_2024
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.02202024.DRAFT
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual January 2024
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual Summary January 2024
	CONSENT--Treasurers Report January 2024
	CONSENT--Voucher Summary January 2024
	REPORTS. MAYOR--Proclamation Robert Igoe
	REPORTS. JR COUNCIL MEMBER--March 2024 Report
	REPORTS. OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 3.4.2024
	OLD BUSINESS--Stoney Batter comments from Mark Hood, LTAP
	OLD BUSINESS--TASA Agreement Amendment Resolution No. 03042024-01
	OLD BUSINESS--CDBG FFY2020 SA Amendment 1
	OLD BUSINESS--CDBG FFY2021 SA Amendement 1
	OLD BUSINESS--MEMO Suggested hourly rate for Baseball Field
	NEW BUSINESS--Pay Application 05 JC Orr 2219 Bellefonte Borough 12.30.2023
	NEW BUSINESS--Pay Application 07 JC Orr 2219 Bellefonte Borough 2.29.2024
	NEW BUSINESS--John Claar Excavating Certificate for Payment No. 2 for Parkview Heights Stormwater Management Project
	NEW BUSINESS--2024 Voting Delegate



